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 S 000 Initial Comments  S 000


Complaint #: NJ149611, NJ153805, NJ151585, 


NJ155095, NJ152881, NJ149603, NJ152929, 


NJ153866, NJ154082, NJ154365, NJ150799, 


NJ152743, NJ155540, NJ149112 and NJ152914.


Census: 197


Sample Size:  17


TYPE OF SURVEY: Complaint Survey


The facility is not in substantial compliance with 


all the standards in the New Jersey Administrative 


Code 8:39, Standards for Licensure of Long-Term 


Care Facilities. 


The facility must submit a plan of correction, 


including a completion date for each deficiency 


and ensure that the plan is implemented. Failure 


to correct deficiencies may result in enforcement 


action in accordance with provisions of New 


Jersey Administrative Code Title 8, Chapter 43E, 


Enforcement of Licensure Regulations


 


 S 560 8:39-5.1(a) Mandatory Access to Care


(a) The facility shall comply with applicable 


Federal, State, and local laws, rules, and 


regulations.


This REQUIREMENT  is not met as evidenced 


by:


 S 560 8/31/22


Complaint Intakes: #NJ151585 and #NJ149611


Based on interviews, facility document review, 


and New Jersey Department of Health (NJDOH) 


memo, dated 01/28/2021, it was determined that 


the facility failed to ensure staffing ratios were 


met. The facility was deficient in certified nursing 


assistant (CNA) staffing for residents for 14 of 14 


08/12/22


S560- 8:39-5.1 (a) Mandatory Access to 


Care


(a) The facility shall comply with 


applicable Federal, State and local laws, 
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day shifts for the weeks of 01/16/2022 through 


01/22/2022 and 01/23/2022 through 01/29/2022. 


The facility was deficient in CNA staffing for 14 of 


14 day shifts for the weeks of 07/03/2022 through 


07/09/2022 and 07/10/2022 through 07/16/2022. 


The facility was deficient in staffing for two of 


seven evening shifts for the week of 01/23/2022 


through 01/29/2022. The deficient practice had 


the potential to affect all residents. 


Findings included:


Reference: New Jersey Department of Health 


(NJDOH) memo, dated 01/28/2021, "Compliance 


with N.J.S.A. (New Jersey Statutes Annotated) 


30:13-18, new minimum staffing requirements for 


nursing homes," indicated the New Jersey 


Governor signed into law P.L. 2020 c 112, 


codified at N.J.S.A. 30:13-18 (the Act), which 


established minimum staffing requirements in 


nursing homes. The following ratio(s) were 


effective on 02/01/2021:


One certified nurse aid to every eight residents 


for the day shift.


One direct care staff member to every 10 


residents for the evening shift, provided that no 


fewer than half of all staff members shall be 


certified nurse aides, and each direct staff 


member shall be signed in to work as a certified 


nurse aide and shall perform nurse aide duties: 


and


One direct care staff member to every 14 


residents for the night shift, provided that each 


direct care staff member shall sign in to work as a 


certified nurse aide and perform certified nurse 


aide duties.


rules, and regulations. 


1. Corrective Action:  


Efforts to hire facility staff will continue 


until there is adequate staff to serve all


residents. Until that time, the facility will 


utilize staffing agencies to fill any open 


spots in the schedule.


2.  Identification of other residents or 


areas having the potential to be affected: 


Due to the nature of the deficiency, all 


residents have the potential to be affected 


by this practice.


3.  Measures put into Place:  


Contracts with additional staffing agencies 


have been secured to supplement facility 


staff. Hiring and recruitment efforts 


including wage analysis and adjustments, 


pay for experience, online job listings, job 


fairs, shift differentials and referral 


bonuses are being utilized to become 


more competitive in the marketplace. 


Administrator or designee will document 


all recruitment efforts. 


4. The Administrator or designee will 


review staffing schedules weekly to 


ensure adequate staffing for all shifts. The 


results of these reviews will be submitted 


to the Quality Assurance Process 


Improvement Committee Meeting for 6 


months. Based on the results of these 


audits, a decision will be made regarding 


the need for continued submission and 


reporting. 
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1. A review of the "Nurse Staffing Report," 


completed by the facility for the weeks of 


01/16/2022 through 01/22/2022 and 01/23/2022 


through 01/29/2022 revealed staff-to-resident 


ratios that did not meet the minimum 


requirements. The facility was deficient in CNA 


staffing for residents on 14 of 14 day shifts as 


follows:


- 01/16/2022 had 17 CNAs for 195 residents on 


the day shift, required 24.


- 01/17/2022 had 16 CNAs for 195 residents on 


the day shift, required 24.


- 01/18/2022 had 17 CNAs for 194 residents on 


the day shift, required 24.


- 01/19/2022 had 19 CNAs for 193 residents on 


the day shift, required 24.


- 01/20/2022 had 17 CNAs for 193 residents on 


the day shift, required 24.


- 01/21/2022 had 18 CNAs for 190 residents on 


the day shift, required 24.


- 01/22/2022 had 14 CNAs for 189 residents on 


the day shift, required 24.


- 01/23/2022 had 11 CNAs for 188 residents on 


the day shift, required 23.


- 01/24/2022 had 15 CNAs for 187 residents on 


the day shift, required 23.


- 01/25/2022 had 18 CNAs for 187 residents on 


the day shift, required 23.


- 01/26/2022 had 20 CNAs for 187 residents on 


the day shift, required 23.


- 01/27/2022 had 19 CNAs for 187 residents on 


the day shift, required 23.


- 01/28/2022 had 18 CNAs for 187 residents on 


the day shift, required 23.


- 01/29/2022 had 9 CNAs for 187 residents on the 


day shift, required 23.


The facility was also deficient in staffing for 


evening shift as follows:
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- 01/23/2022 had a total of 17 staff members for 


the evening shift for 188 residents, required 19.


- 01/23/2022 had a total of 17 staff members with 


6 CNAs, required 8.


2. A review of the "Nurse Staffing Report," 


completed by the facility for the weeks of 


07/03/2022 through 07/09/2022 and 07/10/2022 


through 07/16/2022 revealed staff-to resident 


ratios that did not meet the minimum 


requirements. The facility was deficient in CNA 


staffing for residents on 14 of 14 day shifts as 


follows:


- 07/03/2022 had 16 CNAs for 197 residents on 


the day shift, required 25.


- 07/04/2022 had 20 CNAs for 196 residents on 


the day shift, required 24.


- 07/05/2022 had 18 CNAs for 190 residents on 


the day shift, required 24.


- 07/06/2022 had 16 CNAs for 187 residents on 


the day shift, required 23.


- 07/07/2022 had 17 CNAs for 187 residents on 


the day shift, required 23.


- 07/08/2022 had 16 CNAs for 187 residents on 


the day shift, required 23.


- 07/09/2022 had 18 CNAs for 187 residents on 


the day shift, required 23.


- 07/10/2022 had 20 CNAs for 190 residents on 


the day shift, required 24.


- 07/11/2022 had 17 CNAs for 190 residents on 


the day shift, required 24.


- 07/12/2022 had 18 CNAs for 190 residents on 


the day shift, required 24.


- 07/13/2022 had 20 CNAs for 190 residents on 


the day shift, required 24.


- 07/14/2022 had 20 CNAs for 190 residents on 


the day shift, required 24.


- 07/15/2022 had 17 CNAs for 190 residents on 


the day shift, required 24.
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- 07/16/2022 had 18 CNAs for 190 residents on 


the day shift, required 24.


During an interview on 07/21/2022 at 10:34 AM, 


the Director of Nursing (DON) stated the number 


of staff scheduled to work was based on the daily 


census and that the facility used agency staff to 


try to meet staffing requirements. She indicated 


the facility scheduled adequate staff for each 


shift, but last-minute call outs were causing 


insufficient staffing in the facility.


During an interview on 07/21/2022 at 11:28 AM, 


the Administrator verified the facility was 


short-staffed from 01/16/2022 through 


01/29/2022 and 07/03/2022 through 07/16/2022. 


She stated the schedule would be filled and 


staffed to the requirements, and then staff would 


call out or agency staff would not show up. The 


facility made every effort to fill all call outs; 


however, they were not always successful. She 


stated the facility currently had contracts with 


about six different staffing agencies and 


marketed for staff using all available platforms. 


The company was willing to do and pay whatever 


they needed to get the staffing ratios up to the 


state requirements, but she was not sure what 


more they could do.
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F 000 INITIAL COMMENTS F 000


 Complaint #: NJ149611, NJ153805, NJ151585, 


NJ155095, NJ152881, NJ149603, NJ152929, 


NJ153866, NJ154082, NJ154365, NJ150799, 


NJ152743, NJ155540, NJ149112 and NJ152914.


Census: 197


Sample Size: 17


The facility is not in compliance with the 


requirements of 42 CFR Part 483, Subpart B, for 


Long Term Care Facilities based on this 


complaint survey.


Survey date: 07/19/2022 - 07/21/2022


 


F 684 Quality of Care


CFR(s): 483.25


§ 483.25 Quality of care 


Quality of care is a fundamental principle that 


applies to all treatment and care provided to 


facility residents. Based on the comprehensive 


assessment of a resident, the facility must ensure 


that residents receive treatment and care in 


accordance with professional standards of 


practice, the comprehensive person-centered 


care plan, and the residents' choices.


This REQUIREMENT  is not met as evidenced 


by:


F 684 8/31/22


SS=D


 Complaint Intake #NJ152929


Based on record review, interviews, and review of 


facility policy, the facility failed to ensure 


physician-ordered medication administration and 


monitoring were conducted and documented per 


accepted standards of nursing practice for  


(Resident ) of  sampled residents reviewed 


for missed medications and resident monitoring.


 08/12/22


F684- Quality of Care CFR(s): 483.25


483.25 Quality of care Quality of care is a 


fundamental principle that applies to all 


treatment and care provided to facility 


residents. Based on the comprehensive 


assessment of a resident, the facility must 


ensure that residents receive treatment 


and care in accordance with professional 


LABORATORY DIRECTOR'S OR PROVIDER/SUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE'S SIGNATURE TITLE (X6) DATE


08/18/2022Electronically Signed


Any deficiency statement ending with an asterisk (*) denotes a deficiency which the institution may be excused from correcting providing it is determined that 


other safeguards provide sufficient protection to the patients . (See instructions.)  Except for nursing homes, the findings stated above are disclosable 90 days 


following the date of survey whether or not a plan of correction is provided.  For nursing homes, the above findings and plans of correction are disclosable 14 


days following the date these documents are made available to the facility.  If deficiencies are cited, an approved plan of correction is requisite to continued 


program participation.
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F 684 Continued From page 1 F 684


Findings included:


A review of Resident 's Admission Record 


indicated the facility admitted the resident with 


diagnoses that included  


 A review of the 


admission Minimum Data Set (MDS), dated 


, indicated the resident had  


 with a Brief Interview for 


Mental Status (BIMS) score of  out of 


The care plan, dated  indicated use of 


 medications  


related to adjustment issues, , 


and the use of  medication 


) related to  and poor 


adjustment to admission.


The  Medication Administration 


Record (MAR) revealed the following physician's 


orders and missed signatures on the MAR for the 


following medications and resident monitoring: 


- 02/10/2022,  tablet  


milligram (MG) ( , give one tablet by 


mouth one time a day for supplement (ordered 


date .


- 02/10/2022, 9:00 AM,  capsule  


MG , give one capsule by mouth every 


12 hours for  


 for  


days (start date ).


- 02/10/2022 and 02/22/2022 at 10:00 AM, 


 tablet  mg 


, give one tablet by mouth twice 


a day for  (start date 


standards of practice, the comprehensive 


person-centered care plan, and the 


residents' choices.


1. Corrective Action:  


Resident  was assessed there was no 


negative effects.  Physician was notified 


and no new orders.   The nurse involved 


was re-educated on making sure she 


follows physician’s orders as prescribed. 


She was also re-educated on notifying the 


physician when a medication is not given. 


2. Identification of other residents or areas 


having the potential to be affected:


All facility residents have the potential to 


be affected by the alleged practice. An 


audit was completed to identify any 


MARs/TARs with blanks.  Any residents 


with identified blanks were assessed and 


addressed as needed.


3. Measures put into Place:  


To prevent future occurrences and to 


ensure compliance, all licensed nursing 


staff will be re-educated on this practice 


by 08/31/22. New licensed nurses will 


receive the above education upon hire. 


Education will be done by Director of 


Nursing/Designee by written education. 


4. How the facility plans to monitor its 


performance to make sure that solutions 


are lasting: 


Weekly audits on 5 random residents on 


each unit will be conducted by the Director 


of Nursing/designee to ensure that 


medications are administered based on 


Physician Orders. These audits will be 
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F 684 Continued From page 2 F 684


- 02/04/2022 and 02/10/2022,  


monitoring for , medication changes, 


every shift for  days.


- 02/10/2022 9:00 AM, 1:00 PM, 02/11/2022 1:00 


PM, 02/17/2022 1:00 PM, 02/18/2022 1:00 PM 


and 02/22/2022 9:00 AM, 1:00 PM,  


Tablet  mg, give one tablet by mouth three 


times a day for  (start date 


- 02/04/2022, 02/10/2022 and 02/18/2022, 


 evaluation: vital signs every shift every 


shift for evaluation.


- 02/04/2022, 02/10/2022 and 02/22/2022, 


evaluation: does the resident exhibit 


any other indicative symptoms of  such 


as  


 


every shift for  evaluation 


document signs/symptoms as: y= yes symptoms 


noted; n= no symptoms noted


- 02/04/2022, 02/10/2022, 02/22/2022,  


evaluation: does the resident exhibit any 


respiratory symptoms indicative of such 


as 


 


every shift for  evaluation document 


signs/symptoms as: y= yes symptoms noted; n= 


no symptoms noted.


- 02/10/2022 2:00 PM, 02/11/2022 2:00 PM, 


02/14/2022 2:00 PM, 02/17/2022 2:00 PM, 


02/18/2022 2:00 PM and 02/22/2022 2:00 PM, 


 tablet  mg 


( ), give 1 tablet by mouth every 


conducted weekly x 4weeks and then 


monthly x2 months. Findings will be 


reported at the monthly QAPI meeting 


until substantial compliance has been 


met. 


5.  Date when corrective action will be 


completed: 


08/31/2022
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8 hours for  


(start date ).


- 02/10/2022 and 02/22/2022, may crush or open 


capsules and combine all medications in food or 


liquid according to pharmacy guidelines every 


shift for med administration.


- 02/04/2022 and 02/09/2022, nursing skilled 


pathway every shift for monitoring.


An interview with Nurse Practitioner (NP) #1 was 


conducted on 07/21/2022 at 2:07 PM. The NP 


stated the expectation was for nursing staff to 


follow physician's orders.


An interview was conducted with Licensed 


Practical Nurse (LPN) #8 on 07/21/2022 at 2:56 


PM. The nurse stated Resident  was refusing 


medications and encouragement was needed, so 


they waited until  arrived to help with 


medication administration. The resident would 


take medicines if the resident's  was at the 


bedside. The medications were given but were 


not signed out. The nurse also stated that if it was 


not signed, it meant it was not given and they had 


been educated about the missed signatures. 


An interview with the Director of Nursing (DON) 


was conducted on 07/21/2022 at 3:10 PM. The 


DON stated the expectation was to ensure 


residents received their medications as ordered.


An interview with the Administrator was 


conducted on 07/21/2022 at 4:15 PM. The 


Administrator stated the nurses were expected to 


administer medications according to physician's 


orders. 


FORM CMS-2567(02-99) Previous Versions Obsolete 454811Event ID: Facility ID: NJ03015 If continuation sheet Page  4 of 5







A. BUILDING ______________________


(X1)  PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA


        IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:


STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES 


AND PLAN OF CORRECTION


(X3) DATE SURVEY


       COMPLETED


PRINTED:  11/08/2022
FORM APPROVED


(X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION


B. WING _____________________________


DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES


CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES OMB NO. 0938-0391


315524 07/21/2022


C


STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODENAME OF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER


3718 CHURCH ROAD
LAUREL BROOK REHABILITATION AND HEALTHCARE CENTER


MOUNT LAUREL, NJ  08054


PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION


(EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE 


CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE 


DEFICIENCY)


(X5)


COMPLETION


DATE


ID


PREFIX


TAG


(X4) ID


PREFIX


TAG


SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES


(EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL 


REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION)


F 684 Continued From page 4 F 684


A review of the undated facility policy, 


"Administering Medications," revealed, "4. 


Medications are administered in accordance with 


prescriber orders, including any required time 


frame." "22. The individual administering the 


medication initials the residents MAR on the 


appropriate line after giving each medication and 


before administering the next ones."


New Jersey Administrative Code §8:39 - 29.2(d)
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